
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
  
2. MINUTES

 2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the July 11, 2023 Board of Appeals Meeting
 Attachment
  
3. APPEALS

No appeals have been submitted for review by the Board.
  
4. VARIANCES

 4.a.
Consideration of an application from Juanjose Moran for an Area Variance to Section 8-300(h)
(1)(a) of the City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance to allow a six-foot high fence in the front or street-
side setback area and Section 8-300(i)(2) of the City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance to allow a six
percent open fence in the front or street-side setback area in an R-1A, Single Family Residential
District, for the property located at 604 Frederick Street.

 Attachment

 4.b. Consideration of an application from Hendricks Commercial Properties for a Variance to Section
5-421(b)(4) of the City of Beloit Floodplain Zoning Ordinance to allow modification or addition to
a nonconforming structure, which over the life of the structure would equal or exceed 50 percent
of its present equalized assessed value without the entire structure being permanently changed
to a conforming structure in compliance with the applicable requirements of the floodplain/zoning
ordinance for the property located at 701 Third Street.

 Attachment
  
5. SUCH OTHER MATTERS AS MAY BE AUTHORIZED BY LAW

No other matters for review by the Board.
  
6. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs
of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
BELOIT BOARD OF APPEALS

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM 

Tuesday, September 12, 2023

 

 

 

 

 Board of Appeals
Meeting Agenda - September 12, 2023

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2153488/BOA_Minutes_7-11-2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2157651/BOA_Staff_Report_-_BOA-2023-02__604_Frederick__Moran.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2157649/BOA_Staff_Report_-_BOA-2023-03__701_Third__HCP.pdf


Page 1 of 2 

MINUTES 
BELOIT BOARD OF APPEALS 

City Hall Forum, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI  53511 
7:00 PM 

Tuesday, July 11, 2023 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
A meeting of the City of Beloit Board of Appeals was held on Tuesday, July 11, 2023, in the 
Forum of Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. Chairperson David Baker called the meeting to 
order at 7:00 PM. TJ Nee, Director of Planning and Building Services, called the roll.  Present 
were: David Baker, Susan Adams, Dustin Gronau, Mark Preuschl and John Petersen.  

2. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
2.a.  Election of Chairperson 

Adams nominated Baker as Chairperson, which was seconded by Petersen.  Baker 
accepted the nomination.  The nomination passed (5-0), voice vote.   

2.b.  Election of Vice-Chairperson 
Gronau nominated Adams as Vice-Chairperson, which was seconded by Baker. Adams 
accepted the nomination.  The nomination passed (5-0), voice vote.   

2.c.  Election of Second Vice-Chairperson 
Adams nominated Gronau as Second Vice-Chairperson, which was seconded by 
Preuschl.  Gronau accepted the nomination.  The nomination passed (5-0), voice vote. 

3.  MINUTES 
3.a. Consideration of the Minutes of the December 13, 2022 Board of Appeals Meeting 

Petersen made a motion to approve the December 13, 2022 minutes as submitted.  
Preuschl seconded the motion.  The motion passed (5-0), voice vote. 

4. APPEALS 
No appeals were submitted for review by the Board. 

5. VARIANCES 
No variance requests were submitted for review by the Board. 

6. SUCH OTHER MATTERS AS MAY BE AUTHORIZED BY LAW 
6.a.    Consideration of Resolution 2023-01 approving the amendment to the Rules of 

Procedure for the Board of Appeals 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
the amended Rules of Procedures for the Board of Appeals, including the processes 
for variances and appeals, and a change in quorum to three members. 

2



Page 2 of 2 

Adams asked how quorum has changed. Christensen noted that the Board of Appeals 
quorum was changed in the early 2000s to five members per State law, but 
subsequently State law changed again to make quorum just a majority.  Preuschl asked 
about the seven-member makeup of the Board. Christensen said that there are five 
regular members, and two alternates. Christensen said the two alternates can be part 
of the discussion but cannot vote if there are enough regular members present. 
Preuschl noted that the language for contested hearings is simplified.  Christensen 
confirmed that procedure is similar so there was no need to differentiate between a 
variance or appeal process and a contested hearing. 

Referring to the Voting paragraph in the Rules of Procedure, Adams asked if five 
financially disinterest board members are not available, if it would be three that would 
meet quorum. Christensen agreed that the change should be made from five to three, 
and that if none of them can vote then they would adjourn the meeting.  

Discussion on the Rules of Procedures related to voting ensued.  Adams asked if 
alternates could sit up front. Christensen said that they can sit up front, and it was 
clarified that alternate members cannot vote unless regular members are not able to 
vote or are not present as outlined in State Statute. 

Adams moved to approve the Rules and Procedures as discussed and amended, 
seconded by Preuschl. The motion passed (5-0), voice vote. 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
Preuschl made a motion to adjourn, which was seconded by Gronau. The meeting adjourned 
at 7:39 PM. 

David Baker, Chairperson 

3



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS TO BOARD OF APPEALS

Meeting Date:  September 12, 2023 Agenda Item:  4a File Number:  BOA-2023-02 

Applicant:  Juanjose Moran Owner:  Juanjose Moran Location:  604 Frederick Street 

Existing Zoning: R-1A, Single Family 
Residential District

Existing Land Use:  Single Family 
Residence

Parcel Size:  0.93 acres 

Request:

Juanjose Moran has filed an application requesting an Area Variance to Section 8-300(h)(1)(a) of the City of Beloit 
Zoning Ordinance to allow a six-foot high fence in the front or street-side setback area and Section 8-300(i)(2) of the 
City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance to allow a six percent open fence in the front or street-side setback area in an R-1A, 
Single Family Residential District, for the property located at 604 Frederick Street. 

Request Overview/Background Information:

The applicant has proposed the construction of a 158-foot long, six-foot high fence that is six percent open beginning 
near the northwest property corner of the lot and following along and near the property line adjacent to Forest 
Avenue, then south towards the northeast corner of the house.   The 158 Feet along Forest Avenue and the portion of 
the proposed fence within 30 feet of the property line toward the house is within the street-side setback area of 
Forest Avenue. 

Key Issues:

1. Section 8-300(h)(1)(a) of the City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance requires that fences installed in front setback or 
street-side setback areas shall comply with this section and with the following requirements: In residential, 
commercial and Public Lands and Institutional (PLI) zoning districts, fence height shall not exceed four feet. 

2. Section 8-300(i)(2) of the City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance requires that fences located in front setback and street- 
side setback areas shall be 50 percent open (see-through) and be of split rail, wrought iron or picket design.   

3. The proposed fence is six feet high and according to the application, six percent open (see-through).  
4. The existing lot is 0.93 acres and all existing structures (a single-family house and a detached garage) more than 

meet required setbacks.  The zoning lot is not substandard and exceeds minimum lot area, width and setback 
requirements.  

5. The attached Public Notice was sent to 6 nearby property owners. As of this writing, Planning staff has not 
received any comments or concerns. 

6. Wisconsin Supreme Court Standards for Area Variances
The Wisconsin Supreme Court has established a standard for granting variances to zoning regulations.  For “area” 
variances, the property owner and/or applicant has the burden of proving that the standard for granting an area 
variance has been met.  In order to grant an area variance, the Board of Appeals must determine that all of the 
following criteria of section 2-903 are satisfied: 
a. Compliance with the strict letter of the Zoning Ordinance regulating area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or 

density would create a hardship by either:   
(1) unreasonably preventing the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose; or 
(2) rendering conformity with such regulations unnecessarily burdensome. 

b. The hardship is unique to the property. 
c. The hardship is not self-created. 
d. The variance will not undermine the purpose of the ordinance or the public interest. 
e. The variance will not permit a use of land that substantially changes the character of the neighborhood. 

7. The attached Findings of Fact evaluate this application against the above standards. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan

 The Comprehensive Plan recommends Single Family Residential Uses for the property, and the property is 
zoned R-1A, Single Family Residential District, consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Sustainability

4



If applicable, briefly comment on the environmental, economic, and/or social sustainability of this policy or program.  Consider how current needs 
are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. Write N/A if not applicable

N/A

Staff Recommendation

 The Planning & Building Services Division recommends denial of Area Variance to Section 8-300(h)(1)(a) of the 
City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance to allow a six-foot high fence in a front or street-side setback area, and 
recommends denial of Area Variance and Section 8-300(i)(2) of the City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance to allow a 
six percent open fence in the front or street-side setback area in an R-1A, Single Family Residential District, 
for the property located at 604 Frederick Street, based upon the established criteria of Section 2-903 of the 
Zoning Ordinance and the attached Findings of Fact.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact

N/A

Attachments

Findings of Fact, Location Map, Google Street View, Initial Fence Application, Approved Fence Application, Fence 
Permit, Notice of Violation and Photos, BOA Application, Applicant Submittals, Public Notice, and Mailing List 

5



CITY OF BELOIT
FINDINGS OF FACT

The applicant’s requests are for an Area Variance to Section 8-300(h)(1)(a) of the City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance 
to allow a six-foot high fence in a front or street side setback area, and an Area Variance to Section 8-300(i)(2) of 
the City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance to allow a six percent open fence in the front or street side setback area in an 
R-1A, Single Family Residential District, for the property located at 604 Frederick Street. 

Under the standards for Area Variances in Section 2-903 of the Zoning Ordinance, Planning staff finds: 

(a) Compliance with the strict letter of the Zoning Ordinance regulating area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or 
density would not create a hardship by either: 

(1) Unreasonably preventing the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose; or  

(2) Rendering conformity with such regulations unnecessarily burdensome. 

Compliance with the strict letter of the Zoning Ordinance regulating fence height and percentage of the fence that is 
open within the street-side setback (30-feet) of Forest Avenue (or Frederick Street) would not be unnecessarily 
burdensome for the property owner.  It is not burdensome to build a fence to code, in this case four feet high rather than 
six feet high in the street-side setback area, and it is not burdensome to maintain a 50 percent open fence within front 
or street-side setback areas. All Residential, Commercial and PLI properties in the City where a fence can be built are 
required to meet the same height standard and the 50 percent requirement applies to all zoning districts including 
manufacturing districts. Both existing structures on the property more than meet the setback requirements of the R-1A 
Zoning District, and do not create a physical hardship to install a fence per code.  Also, a fence, or lack thereof, does 
not impact the ability of the owner to use the property for a single-family residence.  The applicant indicated that a 
second garage and driveway off Forest Avenue makes the property unique and that “enforcing the setback for the fence 
would put a fence through the middle of the driveway thus preventing me from using the driveway for permitted 
purposes.”  Staff believes the location of the fence across the driveway (if the applicant chooses to cross the driveway) 
at the setback line as opposed to where the applicant shows it crossing the driveway right behind the property line has 
no bearing on the ability to use the driveway.  The applicant can build a fence in the location desired on the fence 
application, it just cannot be higher than four feet or less than 50 percent open in the street-side setback area as 
proposed.   

(b) The hardship is not unique to the property. 

The existing conditions of the lot and buildings are not unique to the property. All Residential, Commercial and PLI 
properties in the City have the same requirements of a maximum four-foot high fence that is at least 50 percent open 
in front and street-side setback areas (note the 50 percent requirement applies to all zoning districts including 
manufacturing districts).  There are not unique site constraints such as topographical, existing structures or otherwise 
that hinder the ability or build a fence to code.  The applicant indicated that the position of his house on his lot create 
unique circumstance of increased vulnerability. Staff believes this is not a unique situation, and that the Zoning 
Ordinance does not treat properties differently based on real or perceived levels of crime.  Arguably, a six-foot high 
site-obscuring fence adjacent to the public right-of-way provides cover for criminal activity by preventing visibility from 
neighbors, motorists and passersby. 

(c) The hardship is self-created. 

The applicant indicated that “the level of vulnerability would exist regardless of who lives there.”  Again, staff believes 
this is not a unique situation to this property, and that the Zoning Ordinance does not treat properties differently based 
on real or perceived levels of crime. Additionally, the applicant originally started building a fence without a permit.  Staff 
notified the applicant that a permit was needed, and he applied to build a six-foot, sight-obscuring fence within the 
street-side setback area.  Because it did not meet code, staff requested that he amend his application, which he did. 
His amended application met code, because the proposed fencing, although six feet high and site-obscuring was 
proposed to be setback at least 30 feet from the front and street-side property lines.  However, once approved and the 
fence permit was issued, the applicant continued installing a six-foot privacy fence near the property line along Forest 

Avenue, and not as described in the approved drawing, which was a violation of the fence code. Staff issued a violation 
letter with a correction date on August 8, 2023.  Any hardship related to the installation of a fence per code is self-
created, evidenced by the fact that applicant applied for and was approved for a fence that met code, but simply chose 

6



not to build it to code. 

(d) The variance will undermine the purpose of the ordinance or the public interest. 

The variance will undermine the purpose of the ordinance.  The Zoning Ordinance was adopted pursuant to the powers 
granted and limitations imposed by the Constitution and laws of the State of Wisconsin. Included in that authority is the 
ability to establish Development Standards codified in Article VIII of the Zoning Ordinance.  Fence regulations are 
included in those Development Standards. The Zoning Ordinance and the Development Standards contained within it 
are intended to protect the public health, safety, morals, comfort, convenience, and general welfare of existing and 
future residents of the City in part by “zoning all properties with a view to conserving the value of buildings and 
encouraging the most appropriate use of land throughout the City” and by “fixing reasonable standards to which 
buildings and structures shall conform.”  

No fences, other than those in manufacturing districts, are allowed higher than four feet within the front and street-side 
setback areas, and in no district (including manufacturing districts) are allowed to be less than 50 percent open (see 
through) within the front and street-side setback areas.  Allowing a variance to construct a fence on residential property 
that would not even be permitted in a manufacturing zoning district will undermine the purpose of the ordinance, 
compromise neighborhood aesthetics, potentially compromise community safety and negatively impact property values, 
all of which are not in the public interest. 

(e) The variance will permit a use of land that substantially changes the character of the neighborhood.  

The applicant is not proposing a change in land use, however allowing a six-foot fence that is less than 50 percent open 
in a front or street-side setback area would set a precedence for future requests. The effects of doing so would both 
individually and cumulatively substantially change the character of any neighborhood.

7



Location Map 

Google Street View

8



Initial Fence Application 

9



10



Approved Fence Application 

11



12



Fence Permit 

13



Notice of Violation and Photos 

14



15



16



17



Applicant Submittals 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS TO BOARD OF APPEALS

Meeting Date:  September 12, 2023 Agenda Item:  4b File Number:  BOA-2023-3 

Applicant:  Daniel M. Barkes 
Owner: Hendricks Commercial 
Properties, LLC

Location:  701 Third Street 

Existing Zoning: Planned Unit 
Development (PUD), General 
Manufacturing District (M-2), 
Wellhead Protection Overlay (WPO)

Existing Land Use:  Industrial 
(Warehouse), Commercial (Office, 
Retail Sales and 
Service/Entertainment)

Parcel Size:  18.64 acres to Meander 
Line 

Request:

Hendricks Commercial Properties (HCP) has filed an application requesting a Variance to Section 5-421(b)(4) of the 
City of Beloit Floodplain Zoning Ordinance to allow modification or addition to a nonconforming structure, which over 
the life of the structure would equal or exceed 50 percent of its present equalized assessed value without the entire 
structure being permanently changed to a conforming structure in compliance with the applicable requirements of 
the floodplain/zoning ordinance for the properties located at 701 Third Street. While this variance request is for the 
entire Ironworks Campus, the impetus for this request is related to an approved PUD for the Henry Dorrbaker project, 
an entertainment venue on the Campus located at the end of the Spine Road, which is also proposed to include 
indoor pickleball courts connected to Dorrbaker’s. This portion of the Ironworks Campus is located with the 100-year 
floodplain (1% Annual Chance Flood Hazard area).  

Request Overview/Background Information:

HCP received a variance for the same purpose in 2013 that allowed them to make improvements to the Ironworks 
Campus that including the area covered by this variance request as well as additional areas south of the Spine Road 
that exceeded 50 percent of the present equalized assessed value without the entire structure being permanently 
changed to a conforming structure.  The previous variance also included what is now HCP and the YMCA.  Specifically, 
HCP’s 2013 variance allowed them to raise the lowest floor of the structure to the base flood elevation (BFE) along 
with floodproofing measures, rather than raising the lowest floor to the flood protection elevation (FPE), which is two 
feet above the BFE and required when new or non-conforming structures are built in the 100-year floodplain, or 
improved by more than 50 percent of their present equalized assessed value. At the time, the BFE was 743.0, and the 
FPE was 745.0.  The BFE established in 2013 was based on the 2008 Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM).  In 2015, those 
maps were updated effectively lowering the BFE in this area of the Rock River, including the Dorrbaker portion of the 
structure from 743.0 to between 741.3 and 741.6, and in the planned indoor pickleball court area to between 741.6 
and 742.2.  HCP would like to build up the lowest floor of Henry Dorrbaker’s to 742.5 (at least 0.9 feet above BFE) 
and maintain the existing floor of the planned pickleball courts at 742.29 (at least 0.09 feet above BFE), but not raise 
them to 743.0 since the BFE has dropped.  Raising the floors to 743.0 would cause unnecessary hardship.  HCP is 
specifically requesting that the lowest floors of the structure at least meet the current BFE as determined by FEMA at 
the time of construction, whatever that elevation may be, but not a specific elevation number.  As such, a new 
variance for the HCP properties is needed to clarify a condition in the original variance that referred to elevating the 
lowest floor to the BFE, and 743.0.  The new variance is requested for Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map Document 
Number 2065929, recorded in Volume 37 on Pages 445-452 of Certified Survey Maps (CSM) of Rock County Wisconsin 
(attached).  The original 2013 variance will remain in effect for properties not covered by this new variance since the 
2013 variance would still apply to areas described in the 2013 variance except for Lot 1 described above. 

Key Issues:

1. Section 5-421(b)(4) of the City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance requires that no modification or addition to any 
nonconforming structure or any structure with a nonconforming use, which over the life of the structure would 
equal or exceed 50 percent of its present equalized assessed value, shall be allowed unless the entire structure is 
permanently changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use in compliance with the applicable 
requirements of this ordinance.   

2. Since the variance was approved in 2013, an estimated $12M has been invested in the property at 701 Third 
Street. The current assessed value is just under $24M.  HCP will be making additional significant investments in 
the property which likely will exceed the 50 percent limit that the original variance allows, provided conditions 
of approval of the variance continue to be met.  However, the first condition of approval in the 2013 variance is 

26



now considered ambiguous since it requires that “Prior to occupancy of the renovated commercial space, the 
applicant shall elevate the lowest floor to the base flood elevation of 743.0 and shall implement the flood 
proofing measures proposed in their application attachments.” Staff believes the intent of the original 
variance was to elevate the lowest floor to the BFE, which at the time was 743.0, but that 743.0 has no 
significance in it of itself other than representing the prior BFE. 

3. Related to the 2013 approved variance, on August 12, 2013 DNR provided correspondence stating, “It is our 
position that if you elevate the lowest floor to the base flood elevation that we will not oppose the variance. 
Please recognize, however, that if for some reason you do not elevate the lowest floor to the base flood 
elevation, that we would oppose the variance.” Related to this current variance request, on August 18, 2023 DNR 
provided correspondence stating, “Our recommendation at the Department will always be to maximize flood 
protection where possible within the scope of your ordinance, but ultimately, the Department would not object 
to the City’s interpretation of this variance, as long as it results in construction above the current BFE at a 
minimum.”  

4. The applicant has complied with all conditions of the 2013 variance including the various floodproofing measures 
outlined in the 2013 staff report (attached). 

5. The attached Public Notice was sent to 5 nearby property owners. As of this writing, Planning staff has not 
received any comments or concerns. 

6. The standards for granting a variance to the floodplain regulations are detailed in Section 5-426 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. The attached Findings of Fact evaluate this application against those standards. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan

 The Comprehensive Plan recommends General Industrial uses for the property. The underlying M-2 zoning and 
PUD classification are appropriate and consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Sustainability

If applicable, briefly comment on the environmental, economic, and/or social sustainability of this policy or program.  Consider how current needs 
are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. Write N/A if not applicable

If approved, the variance would comply with Economic Sustainability as described in the Strategic Plan by making 
decisions in an economically and fiscally responsible way to further the health of the local economy. 

Staff Recommendation

 The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Variance to Section 5-421(b)(4) of the 
City of Beloit Floodplain Zoning Ordinance to allow modification or addition to a nonconforming structure, 
which over the life of the structure would equal or exceed 50 percent of its present equalized assessed value 
without the entire structure being permanently changed to a conforming structure in compliance with the 
applicable requirements of the floodplain/zoning ordinance for the property located at 701 Third Street, 
based upon the attached updated Findings of Fact and subject to the following conditions: 

1. Prior to occupancy of renovated space, the applicant shall elevate the lowest floor to at least meet 
the current BFE as determined by FEMA at the time of construction, whatever that elevation may 
be. 

2. The applicant shall obtain all applicable zoning and building-related approvals and permits needed 
prior to renovation and occupancy of the property. 

3. Any material changes in the adopted conditions or use of this property shall be approved by the 
Board of Appeals by amending this Variance. 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact

 If approved, the variance would allow additional redevelopment and adaptive reuse of an underused portion 
of the Ironworks Campus, create jobs and increase the tax base.

Attachments

Findings of Fact, BOA Application, Applicant Submittals including CSM, FEMA Exhibit and Narrative, Public Notice, and 
Mailing List, BOA-2013-05 Report Materials

27



CITY OF BELOIT
FINDINGS OF FACT

The applicant’s request is for a Variance to Section 5-421(b)(4) of the City of Beloit Floodplain Zoning Ordinance 
to allow modification or addition to a nonconforming structure, which over the life of the structure would equal or 
exceed 50 percent of its present equalized assessed value without the entire structure being permanently changed 
to a conforming structure in compliance with the applicable requirements of the floodplain/zoning ordinance for 
the property located at 701 Third Street. 

Under the standards for a Variance in Section 5-426(d) of the Zoning Ordinance, Planning staff finds: 
(a) Literal enforcement of the section will cause unnecessary hardship; and 

Literal enforcement of the floodplain provisions causes unnecessary hardship and would require concrete 
fill of 2.24 feet to 3.64 feet over approximately 16,950 square feet for the Henry Dorrbaker area and 1.91 
feet to 2.71 feet over approximately 12,000 square feet for the pickleball courts area if the lowest floors 
were elevated to the flood protection elevation (FPE).  The higher fill amounts are based on the 745.0 FPE 
and the lesser fill amounts are based on the current FPEs.  This is equivalent to approximately 150 to 233 
loads of a standard dump truck. Significant fill throughout the remaining part of the Campus may also be 
needed in the future.  Additionally, raising the floors of these proposed spaces will create a disconnect from 
the adjacent spaces both internally and externally due to a significant elevation change. Adjacent 
unimproved building areas have floor elevations ranging from 741.17’ to 742.29’ and the exterior sidewalk 
and roadway grades range from 740.50’ to 742.50’ Extensive ramping and stairs will be required to maintain 
access and ADA compliance to and from the proposed spaces.  
. 

(b) The hardship is due to adoption of the floodplain section and unique property conditions, not common to 
adjacent lots or premises. In such case the section or map must be amended; and 

The hardship is due to the adoption of the floodplain ordinance in 2008 as amended in 2015, which is more 
than 100 years after the building was constructed to house Beloit Corporation. The current Ironworks 
building and overall Campus have unique property conditions not common to adjacent lots or premises 
including its size, original construction period, former use and location in downtown Beloit adjacent to the 
Rock River, all of which make it particularly and practically difficult to make this facility completely conform 
to contemporary Floodplain Zoning standards. 

(c) The variance is not contrary to the public interest; and 

The variance is not contrary to the public interest. The applicant will elevate the lowest floor to the base 
flood elevation and has provided flood proofing measures. The DNR has indicated that it does not object 
to the City’s interpretation of this variance, as long as it results in construction above the current BFE at a 
minimum. 

(d) The variance is consistent with the purpose of this section in Section 5-403. 

The variance, subject to a condition requiring the lowest floor to be at or above BFE along with flood 
proofing, is consistent with the purpose of the ordinance in Section 5-403.

In addition to the criteria above, to qualify for a variance under FEMA regulations, the following criteria must be met: 

(a) The variance may not cause any increase in the regional flood elevation; 
(b) Variances can only be granted for lots that are less than one-half acre and are contiguous to existing structures 

constructed below the RFE;  
(c) Variances shall only be granted upon a showing of good and sufficient cause, shall be the minimum relief 

necessary, shall not cause increased risks to public safety or nuisances, shall not increase costs for rescue and 
relief efforts and shall not be contrary to the purpose of the section. 

As with the previous variance granted in 2013, the proposed variance meets criteria (a) and (c) above. For 
criterion (b) the lot size is greater than one-half acre but criterion (b) is not absolute.  44 CFR § 60.6(a) 
allows variances for lots that are larger than one-half acre, provided “the technical justification required for 

28



issuing a variance increases.” The justification outlined above meets this condition including the need for 
extensive fill over a large footprint that ultimately exceeds one-half acre, otherwise creating a disconnect 
from the adjacent spaces both internally and externally due to a significant elevation change, extensive 
ramping and stairs that would be required to maintain access and ADA compliance to and from the 
proposed spaces, and unique property conditions not common to adjacent lots or premises including its 
size, original construction period, former use and location in downtown Beloit adjacent to the Rock River.  
It would be particularly and practically difficult to make this facility completely conform to contemporary 
Floodplain Zoning standards that were not in existence at the time of site development more than 100 years 
ago. 

A variance shall not: 
(a) Grant, extend or increase any use prohibited in the zoning district. 
(b) Be granted for a hardship based solely on an economic gain or loss. 
(c) Be granted for a hardship which is self-created. 
(d) Damage the rights or property values of other persons in the area. 
(e) Allow actions without the amendments to this section or map(s) required in Division 8, Amendments. 
(f) Allow any alteration of an historic structure, including its use, which would preclude its continued designation 

as an historic structure. 

The requested variance does not grant, extend or increase any use prohibited in the zoning district. Literal 
enforcement of the section will cause unnecessary hardship not solely based on economic gain or loss.  
The hardship is due to adoption of the floodplain section and unique property conditions and not self-
created.  The variance is not contrary to the public interest and does not damage the rights or property 
values of other persons in the area. The variance does not allow actions without amendments to this section 
or map(s) required in Division 8 related to obstructions or increase in base flood elevations. The proposed 
variance does not allow any alteration of an historic structure, including its use, which would preclude its 
continued designation as an historic structure because it is not a designated historic structure. 

29



30



31



APPLICANT SUBMITTALS 

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



BOA-2013-05 REPORT MATERIALS

43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60


	Board of Appeals Agenda
	2023-1993 - Attachment
	2023-1989 - Attachment
	2023-1990 - Attachment

